African Heritage Commission City Hall Room 430, 411 W. 1st Street March 14, 2024, 6:00 p.m.

Members Present: Ayana Izala, Njoki Kamau, Archi Davis, Bernice Pepper, Vanni Hayden, Melissa Grimes

	Minutes: The September 14, 2023, minutes were approved without corrections. Public Comment: No one took advantage of the public comment period.
	Meeting Location: A discussion regarding potential meeting locations took place.
	ugh eventually a desire to meet in the community was voiced, at this time meetings
	ake place in Duluth City Hall.
	Election of African Heritage Commission Officers: Melissa Grimes was
electe	ed Chair and Ayana Izala was elected as Vice Chair.
	Roberts Rules of Order: A book of the Roberts Rules of Order was distributed to
all the	e Commissioners.
	\$10,000 Unity Fund Award/African Heritage Center RFP Process:
	o A motion passed that Vanni Hayden, Bernice Pepper, and Melissa Grimes be
	the lead commissioners for project coordination and communication as they work
	with the staff to engage a consultant to develop an RFP (Request for Proposal) for
	a community gathering space for people of African descent and Duluth's Black
	Community.
	o A motion passed that the staff along with commissioners Hayden, Pepper and
	Grimes, proceed with the process of engaging a consultant to develop an RFP for
	a community gathering space for people of African descent and Duluth's Black
	Community.
	Offer from Pastor Galloway/Dendros Group
	o Bernice Pepper reported that Pastor Anthony Galloway (from the St. Mark
	AME Church) is willing to assist the African Heritage Commission with training
	and organizing at no cost to the AHC.
	o Pepper also supplied information regarding the Dendros Group which is a
	team of professionals that empower individuals, organizations, and
	communities to thrive.
	o The staff will find a date that works for the Commission to meet with Pastor
	communities to thrive.

Submitted by Theresa O'Gara

African Heritage Commission - March 10, 2021

Commissioners Present: Antonio Carter, Bernice Pepper, Jebeh Edmonds, John Staine, Susie

Green, Verna Thornton

City Staff Present: Mollie Hinderaker, Suzanne Kelley

City staff shared a summary of demographic data, requested by the Commission, with a specific focus on Duluth's Black and African Heritage community. Data Source: 2015-19 American Community Survey (ACS) 5 year

estimates. The ACS 5 year estimates are an average of 5 years' worth of surveys conducted on a random sampling of the population. Duluth's population is 85,915. About 2% of the population, or 1959 people, selected "Black or

African American" as their only racial identity. The report goes on to include the following data: BIPOC Racial Composition of Duluth, patterns of segregation in Duluth neighborhoods based on neighborhood racial composition, information about housing ownership, educational attainment, poverty, income, and employment for Duluth's total population and Duluth's Black population, and the percentage of all Duluthians and of Black Duluthians employed in 7 different occupational categories. For a copy of the full report, contact Gail at gail4duluth@gmail.com.

The Commissioners asked for additional data including number of African Heritage people employed in the trades, health and human services, education, etc. Suzanne Kelley, city staff, will write a summary of the Commissioners' request and share at the April 14 meeting.

The Commissioners voted and elected John Staine as Chair and Susie Green as Vice Chair.

Daniel Hakes, Vice Chair of the Human Rights Commission spoke. He stated that racism is a public health issue and asked for help from the Commissioners to be part of a subcommittee with the Human Rights and Indigenous Commissions to draft a statement to this effect. John Staine, Jebeh Edmonds, and Susie Greene volunteered to be a part of this subcommittee.

Plans for the Waabizheshikana Trail (formerly the Martin Trail) were discussed in terms of how African Heritage Historic Preservation can be applied to the development of the trail. Commissioner Staine suggested that a statue of George Bonga be placed at the head of the trail. George Bonga (1802-1880) was a Black Indigenous fur trader, one of the first people of African descent born in the part of the Northwest Territory that became the state of Minnesota. Commissioners Staine and Edmonds will follow up.

The next meeting will be held virtually on April 14 at 5:30 PM.

African Heritage Commission - February 10, 2021

Present: City Staff, Kathy Wilson and Mollie Hinderaker. Commissioners Edmonds,

Thornton, Staine, Pepper, and Ellison.

Temporary chair: John Staine

Public Comment: Councilor Janet Kennedy thanked the Commissioners for their service on the African Heritage Commission. She reported that the development of the Martin Road Trail, renamed Waabbizheshikana, is an important project for the Indigenous Community and would like to see a similar project in Western Duluth, particularly the Oliver Bridge and the U.S. Steel site, that highlights the contributions of the African Heritage community. Comments to the Parks and Recreation Commission are being taken until Feb. 17. Commissioners were encouraged to have a voice in the development of these areas and their significance to the African Heritage community.

Elena Foshay and Duane Hill representing the Work Force Development Board addressed the Commissioners seeking advice to help the WF Board improve their services to employers and those seeking employment. WFD works with employers on diversity, equity and inclusion and provides job seekers with training and goal setting. The Commissioners were asked what they were hearing about needs in the community and how WFD could reach out to those in need of services. Suggestions included: reach out to a variety of organizations such as the Family Freedom Center not just the NAACP, talk to people where they are and pay people (gift cards) to share their ideas one on one or as part of a focus group, talk to students particularly at the colleges, be present at job fairs and family nights at schools such as Myers Wilkins, identify those who could serve as community consultants (reimburse them) to identify the various factors that get in the way of securing a job.

By-laws: The Commissioners voted to approve the following Statement of Purpose of the African Heritage Commission:

The purpose of this Commission is to ensure that the views of the African Heritage community are incorporated in the decision making, future planning, and stewardship of the City of Duluth. The Commission will endeavor to act as a guide in the development of public policy, planning, and services so that the African Heritage community is adequately represented in these processes. The Commission will aim to plan, develop, and implement community projects that recognize and increase the awareness of the contributions of African-Heritage history; to encourage and assist the teaching of African-Heritage history; and to recognize sites in the community that are significant to African-Heritage History.

The next virtual meeting is on March 10, 5:30 PM. Demographic data requested from the city staff will be reviewed and discussed. The data requested of city staff by the Commissioners include employment, businesses, education attainment, health disparities, justice and legal system, and general demographic statistics about the African Heritage community.

African Heritage Commission - January 13, 2021

Commissioners present: John Staine, Verna Thornton, Bernice Pepper, Susie Green, Jebeh Edmonds. The meeting was held virtually. City liaison: Ben Van Tassel

Public Comment: Henry Banks notified the commissioners of a bill in the legislature and asked for their support. The bill still in draft form is the Philando Castile Omnibus Bill 2021 sponsored by 67A State Representative John Thompson.

Commissioners were informed of two meetings for groups interested in police accountability and reform: Thursday, Jan. 28 and Sun. Jan.31.

Minutes for Dec. 16 were approved.

The Commissioners reviewed by-laws suggested at the November meeting. There was concern about how the statement of purpose is worded, particularly the following sentence: "The commission will endeavor to increase understanding and acceptance of the African Heritage community and culture..." A decision to table approval of the wording until next meeting when Commissioners will determine a preferable change to the statement of purpose.

Next meeting on February 10. Staff will provide demographic data requested by Commissioners, a list of BIPOC owned businesses, as well as city grants and other funding opportunities. Elena Foshay, Director of Workforce Development will give a presentation.

African Heritage Commission, November 16, 2020.

The African Heritage Commission met for the first time on November 16, 2020. The meeting was held virtually.

As the City of Duluth website states, "The purpose of this commission is to ensure that the views of the African Heritage community are incorporated in the decision making, future planning, and stewardship of the city of Duluth. The commission will endeavor to act as a guide in the development of public policy, planning and services so that the African Heritage community is adequately represented in these processes. The commission will also endeavor to increase understanding and acceptance of the African Heritage community and culture and to increase African Heritage community involvement in all aspects of community affairs in Duluth."

The Commission has seven members who may serve up to two terms of three years each. The seven members are:

Antonio Carter, Verna A. Thornton, Bernice Pepper, Susie Green, Breanna Ellison, John A. Staine, Jebeh Edmunds.

The Commissioners shared their perspectives on what niche the African Heritage Commission can fill in our community.

Their suggestions and ideas included the following:

Establish a collaborative of groups to engage young people in music, the arts, dance, etc. Recruit professionals to act as mentors and role models for youth; Work towards obtaining a space for African Heritage community to gather for programs, etc; Emphasize recruitment and retention of African Heritage professionals. Promote black businesses and restaurants and develop a network of black professionals so they stay in Duluth; Provide incentives for people of color to get outside and enjoy outdoor activities---provide programs and equipment; Solicit input (maybe with a survey) from African Heritage members of the community to include them in the Commission's decision making.

A permanent meeting date and time will be set at the next Commission meeting. Additional agenda items will include a discussion to determine the Commission's Bylaws and a process to adopt them at a future meeting.

The date of the next meeting is to be determined. This date will be posted on the City of Duluth's website: duluthmn.gov and click on African American Heritage Commission.